# ANNUAL TOWN MEETING

# NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN

To the legal voters, residents of the Town of Cunningham in the County of Champaign and State of Illinois, that the Annual Town Meeting of said Town will take place on

# Tuesday, April 9, 2024

Being the second Tuesday of said month At the hour of 6:00 p.m. | City of Urbana Council Chambers 400 South Vine Street, Urbana, IL 61801

For the transaction of the miscellaneous business of the said township; and after a Moderator having been elected, will proceed to hear and consider reports of officers, and decide on such measures as it may, in pursuance of law, come before the meeting; and to consider and decide the following:

# **AGENDA**

- 1. Call to Order by Town Clerk
- 2. Approval of Minutes
  - a. April 11, 2023
- 3. Adoption of Public Input Guidelines
- 4. Election and Oath of Moderator
- 5. Public Participation
- 6. Program Updates from Cunningham Township Supervisor's and Assessor's Office
- 7. Reports of Officers
- 8. Annual Financial Statement of Supervisor (Fiscal Year 2022-2023)
- 9. Shall the following advisory question of public policy be placed on the ballot for submission to the voters in Cunningham Township, in Champaign County, in the State of Illinois, for the November 5, 2024 election: "Shall the City of Urbana adopt a policy whereby the City shall not invest in any fossil fuel company, or any subsidiary, affiliate, or parent of any fossil fuel company?"
- 10. Shall the following advisory question of public policy be placed on the ballot for submission to the voters in Cunningham Township, in Champaign County, in the State of Illinois, for the November 5, 2024 election: "Shall the United States federal government and subordinate divisions stop giving military funding to Israel, which currently costs taxpayers 3.8 billion dollars a year, given Israel's global recognition as an apartheid regime with a track record of human rights violations?"
- 11. Time and Place of Next Annual Town Meeting [6:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 8, 2025]
- 12. Adjournment

# TOWNSHIP ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT can be found -

https://www.city.urbana.il.us/ Cunningham Township/?Folder=/Cunningham Township/Ordina nces Resolutions/Financial Reports/Archive

# ANNUAL MEETING OF THE ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF CUNNINGHAM MINUTES

Tuesday, April 11, 2023

The Annual Town Meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. April 11, 2023, in the Urbana City Council Chambers at 400 South Vine Street, Urbana, Illinois 61801.

# **CALL TO ORDER**

The Town Clerk, Phyllis D. Clark, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Elected officials present: Danielle Chynoweth, Township Supervisor, Township Clerk, Phyllis D. Clark. Electors present: James Quisenberry, Shirese Hursey.

# APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

Town Clerk Clark called for the approval of the April 12, 2022 Annual Town Minutes. Motion by James Quisenberry and seconded by Shirese Hursey for approval. Minutes were approved by voice vote.

#### **ELECTION OF MODERATOR**

Town Clerk called for nominations from the floor for the electors to select a moderator from those in attendance. Supervisor Chynoweth nominated elector James Quisenberry to serve as Moderator. Elector Quisenberry accepted the call to moderate this Annual Town Meeting. Clerk Clark proceeded to administer the oath of office to the Moderator for this Annual Meeting.

# **PUBLIC INPUT**

Moderator Quisenberry called for public comment. There were none.

#### PROGRAM UPDATES FROM CUNNINGHAM TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR and ASSESSOR

Presented by Danielle Chynoweth, Cunningham Township Supervisor. She provided a complete overview of the programs and projects that Township is providing for the underserved in our community.

#### **REPORTS OF OFFICERS**

There were none.

# ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Supervisor Chynoweth advised that the Financial Statements are on file in the Township Office and the Clerk's Office.

Resolution No. T-2023-01-008R: A Resolution Authorizing Certain Individuals to Sign Checks for Cunningham Township [this item was not voted on since the decision has not been finalized].

# TIME and PLACE OF NEXT ANNUAL TOWN MEETING

[Tuesday, April 9, 2024 at 6:00p.m.]. The motion to accept the next Annual Town Meeting was moved by Shirese Hursey and seconded by Danielle Chynoweth. The motion carried by voice vote.

# **ADJOURNMENT**

With no further business to come before the electors of this Town Meeting, Moderator Quisenberry declared this Annual Town Meeting adjourned at 6:09 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Phyllis D. Clark Cunningham Township Clerk

# (Proposed) PUBLIC INPUT GUIDELINES

The City of Urbana welcomes Public Input during open meetings of the City Council, the City Council's Committee of the Whole, City Boards and Commissions, and other City-sponsored meetings. Our goal is to foster respect for the meeting process, and respect for all people participating as members of the public body, city staff, and the general public. The City is required to conduct all business during public meetings. The presiding officer is responsible for conducting those meetings in an orderly and efficient manner.

Public Input will be taken in the following ways:

#### **Email Input**

Public comments must be received prior to the closing of the meeting record (at the time of adjournment unless otherwise noted) at the following: <a href="mailto:cityclerk@urbanaillinois.us">cityclerk@urbanaillinois.us</a>. The subject line of the email must include the words "PUBLIC INPUT" and the meeting date. Your email will be sent to all City Council members, the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Clerk. Emailed public comments <a href="mailto:labeled as such">labeled as such</a> will be incorporated into the public meeting record, with personal identifying information redacted. Copies of emails will be posted after the meeting minutes have been approved.

#### Written Input

Any member of the public may submit their comments addressed to the members of the public body in writing. If a person wishes their written comments to be included in the record of Public Input for the meeting, the writing should so state. Written comments must be received prior to the closing of the meeting record (at the time of adjournment unless otherwise noted).

# Verbal Input

Protocol for Public Input is one of respect for the process of addressing the business of the City. Obscene or profane language, or other conduct that threatens to impede the orderly progress of the business conducted at the meeting is unacceptable.

Public comment shall be limited to no more than five (5) minutes per person. The Public Input portion of the meeting shall total no more than two (2) hours, unless otherwise shortened or extended by majority vote of the public body members present. The presiding officer or the city clerk or their designee, shall monitor each speaker's use of time and shall notify the speaker when the allotted time has expired. A person may participate and provide Public Input once during a meeting and may not cede time to another person, or split their time if Public Input is held at two (2) or more different times during a meeting. The presiding officer may give priority to those persons who indicate they wish to speak on an agenda item upon which a vote will be taken.

The presiding officer or public body members shall not enter into a dialogue with citizens. Questions from the public body members shall be for clarification purposes only. Public Input shall not be used as a time for problem solving or reacting to comments made but, rather, for hearing citizens for informational purposes only.

In order to maintain the efficient and orderly conduct and progress of the public meeting, the presiding officer of the meeting shall have the authority to raise a point of order and provide a verbal warning to a speaker who engages in the conduct or behavior proscribed under "Verbal Input". Any member of the public body participating in the meeting may also raise a point of order with the presiding officer and request that they provide a verbal warning to a speaker. If the speaker refuses to cease such conduct or behavior after being warned by the presiding officer, the presiding officer shall have the authority to mute the speaker's microphone and/or video presence at the meeting. The presiding officer will inform the speaker that they may send the remainder of their remarks via e-mail to the public body for inclusion in the meeting record.

# Accommodation

If an accommodation is needed to participate in a City meeting, please contact the City Clerk's Office at least 48 hours in advance so that special arrangements can be made using one of the following methods:

- Phone: 217.384.2366

- Email: CityClerk@urbanaillinois.us

# **Re: Township Advisory Referendum Process**

State of Illinois statute (60 ILCS 1/30-205) allows citizens to place an advisory referendum on election ballots.

Advisory referenda are a form of direct democracy where registered voters within a township determine the outcome; elected representatives do not make the decision.

# The process:

- 1. A citizen creates a petition supporting an advisory referendum question to be placed on the Annual Meeting agenda of the local township.
- 2. The citizen gathers the required number of signatures of registered voters within the township and submits it to the township clerk by March 1.
- 3. The clerk <u>must</u> place the referendum on the agenda for the Annual Meeting, which is held each year on the second Tuesday of April.
- 4. The registered voters of the township who are in attendance at the Annual Meeting vote on whether the referendum should be placed on the ballot of the next election.
- 5. If it passes, the clerk must submit it to the county clerk for placement on the ballot.
- 6. Voters then vote yes or no on each question in the November election.
- 7. The referendum is intended to survey the will of the voters. Passing the referendum on the election ballot does not obligate any governing body to act.

One limit recently imposed by the legislature is to limit the referendums to no more than three on the township Annual Meeting agenda. There are two referenda that were submitted by the Cunningham Township electorate by the deadline.

This year's Annual Meeting is April 9, 2024 6:00 p.m. in City of Urbana Council Chambers at 400 South Vine Street, Urbana, IL 61801.

Sincerely,

Danielle Chynoweth Cunningham Township Supervisor

# HOW TO ACCOMPLISH WHAT YOU WANT TO DO IN MEETINGS

#### MAIN MOTION

Y	ou want	to pro	pose a	new	idea	or	action	for	the	group	١.
---	---------	--------	--------	-----	------	----	--------	-----	-----	-------	----

•	After recognition, make a main motion.	
•	Member: "Madame Chairman, I move that	''

# AMENDING A MOTION

•	You want to change some of the wording that is being discussed.
•	After recognition, "Madame Chairman, I move that the motion be amended by adding
	the following words"

•	After recognition,	"Madame	Chairman,	I move	that the m	notion l	be ameno	ded by	striking
	out the following	words	''						

•	After recognition, "Madame C	hairman, I move that the motion be amended by striking
	out the following words,	, and adding in their place the following words
	"	
	•	

# LIMIT DEBATE

You think discussion is getting long, but you want to give a reasonable length of time for consideration of the question.

• After recognition, "Madam President, I move to limit discussion to two minutes per speaker."

#### **RECESS**

You want to take a break for a while.

• After recognition, "Madame Moderator, I move to recess for ten minutes."

# ADJOURNMENT

You want the meeting to end.

• After recognition, "Madame Chairman, I move to adjourn."

(Continued on back)

# PERMISSION TO WITHDRAW A MOTION

You have made a motion and after discussion, are sorry you made it.

• After recognition, "Madam President, I ask permission to withdraw my motion."

# POINT OF ORDER

It is obvious that the meeting is not following proper rules.

• Without recognition, "I rise to a point of order," or "Point of order."

# Roberts Rules of Order Reference Sheet

# WHAT DO I SAY?

To Do This	Motion	You Say This	Debate Allowed?	Vote Required
Introduce Business	Main	"I move that"	Yes	Majority
Second a Motion	Second	"Second!"	No	No
Change the Wording or add Clarity of a Motion	Amend	"I move to amend the motion by" (adding words; striking out words; substitute words)	Yes	Majority
Send to Committee	Commit/ Refer	"I move the motion be referred to"	Yes	Majority
Postpone Action until a Specific Time	Postpone	"I move the motion be postponed until"  (provide a specific time on the agenda or next meeting date)	Yes	Majority
Postpone Action until an Unspecified Time (a motion will be required to discuss in the future)	Lay on the Table	"I move to lay the motion on the table."	No	Majority
Limit Debate	Limit Debate	"I move that the debate on this motion be limited to (one) speech of (two) minutes for each member."	No	Two- thirds
End Debate or Request a Vote	Previous Question	"I move the previous question."	No	Two- thirds
Take Intermission	Recess	"I move to recess for (time)."	No	Majority
Close Meeting	Adjourn	"I move to adjourn."	No	Majority

#### Robert's Rules of Order Additional Information

#### Why follow Robert's Rules of Order?

- Allows for democratic speech and action
- Preservers order
- Rights of the organization supersede the rights of individuals
- Facilitates group decisions

#### **Meeting Agendas**

- 1. Approval of Minutes
- 2. Reports (from officers, committees, task forces)
- 3. Unfinished Business (replaces term "old business")
- 4. New Business items brought forward by motion procedure

# **Meeting Minutes**

- Minutes are a legal record of meetings and the organization.
- Minutes are a record of what is done at a meeting, not what is said.

#### Minutes should include:

- 1. Name, date and location of meeting
- 2. List of attendees (note presence of a quorum)
- 3. Time meeting was called to order
- 4. Conflict of Interest & Antitrust Avoidance Affirmation
- 5. Approval of previous meeting minutes
- 6. Motion text and name of maker
- 7. Status/results of motions
- 8. Time meeting was adjourned

#### Minutes do not include:

- Discussion
- Personal opinion
- Name of seconder of a motion is not necessary
- Motions withdrawn
- Entire reports (rather attach to minutes)

# Motion

- A motion is a formal proposal by a member that the group take a certain action or position.
- A main motion is required to begin the decision making process.
- A motion occurs prior to discussion

## **Ground Rules for Debating**

- Remarks must be germane (relevant and appropriate to the discussion); stay on subject.
- Debate issues, not personalities

# CUNNINGHAM TOWNSHIP, ILLINOIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT



FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

200 West Green Street Urbana, Illinois 61801

Phone: 217.384.4144

www.toi.org/township/champaign-county-cunningham-township/

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
FINANCIAL SECTION	
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	<u>1</u>
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	<u>5</u>
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-Wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis	<u>12</u>
Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis	<u>13</u>
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds - Modified Cash Basis	<u>14</u>
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to the	
Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities - Modified Cash Basis	<u>15</u>
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in	
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - Modified Cash Basis	<u>16</u>
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances	
to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities - Modified Cash Basis	<u>17</u>
Notes to Financial Statements	<u>18</u>
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of Employer Contributions	
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund	<u>35</u>
Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability	
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund	<u>36</u>
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance	
Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis	
Town Fund	<u>38</u>
Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis	
Town Fund	<u>39</u>
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance	
Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis	
General Assistance - Special Revenue Fund	<u>41</u>
Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis	
General Assistance Fund	<u>42</u>
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE	
Schedule of Assessed Valuations, Tax Rates, Extension and Collections	
Last Eight Fiscal Years	45

# **FINANCIAL SECTION**

# This section includes:

- Independent Auditors' Report
- Management's Discussion and Analysis
- Basic Financial Statements
- Other Supplementary Information
- Supplemental Schedule

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT This section includes the opinion of the Township's independent auditing firm.

www.lauterbachamen.com



# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

January 5, 2024

Board of Trustees Cunningham Township Urbana, Illinois

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cunningham Township (the Township), Illinois, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Township's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cunningham Township, Illinois, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting as described in Note 1.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Township, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting**

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

# Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1, and for determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

# Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Township's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Supplementary Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Cunningham Township, Illinois' basic financial statements. The management's discussion and analysis, other supplementary information and supplemental schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, management's discussion and analysis, other supplementary information and supplemental schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Cunningham Township, Illinois January 5, 2024

#### Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises of the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP

# MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2023

The management of Cunningham Township (the "Township") offers the readers of our financial statements the following narrative discussion and analysis of our financial activities of the Township for the fiscal period ending June 30, 2023. Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") is designed to focus on the current year's activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the Township's financial statements, which can be found in the basic financial statements section of this report.

#### FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- The Township's net position increased as a result of this year's operations. Net position of the governmental activities increased by \$424,344, or 14.2 percent.
- During the year, government-wide revenues for the primary government totaled \$2,369,512, while expenses totaled \$1,945,168, resulting in an increase to net position of \$424,344.
- The Township's net position totaled \$3,414,623 on June 30, 2023, which includes \$518,072 net investment in capital assets, \$1,671,559 subject to external restrictions, and \$1,224,992 unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
- The Town Fund reported an increase this year of \$149,120 or 13.9 percent, resulting in ending fund balance of \$1,224,992.

#### USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the Township as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Township's finances. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Township's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the Township's most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the Township acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

#### **Government-Wide Financial Statements**

The government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the Township's finances, in a matter similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position reports information on all of the Township's assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Township is improving or deteriorating. Consideration of other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Township's property tax base and the condition of the Township's infrastructure, is needed to assess the overall health of the Township.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Management's Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2023

#### USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT - Continued

#### **Fund Financial Statements**

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The Township, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

#### **Governmental Funds**

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Township's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Township maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the Town Fund and General Assistance Fund, which are considered major funds. The Township does not maintain any nonmajor funds.

The Township adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of the governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement for these funds has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

#### **Notes to the Financial Statements**

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

#### **Other Information**

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary information concerning the Township's I.M.R.F. employee pension obligation and the budgetary comparison schedules for the Town Fund and major special revenue fund.

Management's Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2023

#### **GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS**

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The following tables show that in the case of the Township, assets/deferred outflows exceeded liabilities/deferred inflows by \$3,414,623.

		Net Position			
		6/30/2023	6/30/2022		
Assets					
Current Assets	\$	2,908,158	2,501,206		
Capital Assets		518,072	502,890		
Total Assets		3,426,230	3,004,096		
Liabilities					
Other Liabilities		11,607	13,817		
Net Position					
Net Investment in Capital Assets		518,072	502,890		
Restricted		1,671,559	1,411,517		
Unrestricted		1,224,992	1,075,872		
Total Net Position	_	3,414,623	2,990,279		

A portion of the Township's net position, \$518,072 or 15.2 percent, reflects its investment in capital assets (for example, software, buildings, or vehicles), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Township uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Township's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion, \$1,671,559 or 48.9 percent, of the Township's net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining 35.9 percent, or \$1,224,992, represents unrestricted net position and may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Management's Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2023

#### **GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS**

		Changes in Net Position		
		6/30/2023	6/30/2022	
Revenues				
Program Revenues				
Capital Grants/Contributions	\$	336,607	293,601	
General Revenues				
Property Taxes		1,851,510	1,839,573	
Replacement Taxes		93,308	82,551	
Interest Income		46,870	1,568	
Other		41,217	36,464	
Total Revenues		2,369,512	2,253,757	
Expenses				
General Government		699,699	730,624	
Public Welfare		1,245,469	1,268,472	
Total Expenses		1,945,168	1,999,096	
Change in Net Position		424,344	254,661	
Net Position - Beginning		2,990,279	2,735,618	
Net Position - Ending	_	3,414,623	2,990,279	

Net position of the Township's governmental activities increased by 14.2 percent (\$3,414,623 in 2023 compared to \$2,990,279 in 2022). Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints, totaled \$1,224,992 at June 30, 2023.

Revenues for governmental activities totaled \$2,369,512, while the cost of all governmental functions totaled \$1,945,168. This results in an increase of \$424,344. In 2022, revenues of \$2,253,757 exceeded of expenses of \$1,999,096, resulting in a surplus of \$254,661. The increase in 2023 was due to an increase of capital grants of \$43,006.

Management's Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2023

#### FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Township uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

#### **Governmental Funds**

The focus of the Township's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The Township's governmental funds reported combining ending fund balances of \$2,896,551, which is an increase of \$409,162 or 16.4 percent, from last year's total of \$2,487,389. Of the \$2,896,551 total, \$1,102,921 or approximately 56.3 percent, of the fund balance constitutes unassigned fund balance.

The Town Fund reported an increase in fund balance for the year of \$149,120, or 13.9 percent due partially to expenditures decreasing from the prior year.

The Town Fund is the chief operating fund of the Township. At June 30, 2023, unassigned fund balance in the Town Fund was \$1,102,921, which represents 90.0 percent of the total fund balance of the Town Fund. As a measure of the Town Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance in the Town Fund represents approximately 159.8 percent of total Town Fund expenditures.

The General Assistance Fund reported an increase in fund balance for the year of \$260,042. This was due to an increase of revenues of \$205,197 compared to the prior year.

#### TOWN FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Township Board made one budget amendment to the Town Fund during the year. Town Fund actual revenues for the year totaled \$839,284, compared to budgeted revenues of \$883,270. Property tax revenue came in \$43,986 under budget.

The Town Fund actual expenditures for the year were \$340 under budget (\$690,164 actual compared to \$690,504 budgeted). The Disbursements Supervisor's Office was under budget by \$642 and Assessor's Office function came in over budget by \$302.

Management's Discussion and Analysis June 30, 2023

#### CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

#### **Capital Assets**

The Township's investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of June 30, 2023 was \$518,072 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes software and buildings.

	Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation					
	(	5/30/2023	6/30/2022			
Software Buildings	\$	2,906 515,166	6,284 496,606			
Totals		518,072	502,890			

This year's major additions included:

Buildings <u>\$ 35,400</u>

Additional information on the Township's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

#### **Debt Administration**

At year end, the Township had no outstanding debt.

# **ECONOMIC FACTORS**

The Township's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2024 budget, and the associated property tax rates and charges for services.

In preparing the budget, the Township Board, Management and Treasurer take into consideration long-term goals of the Township, along with any unforeseen expenses that might occur, as well as the potential impact of current economic conditions.

#### REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is intended to provide our residents, investors, creditors and other interested parties with an overview of the finances of the Cunningham Township and to demonstrate the Township's accountability for the financial resources it receives. Questions concerning any information contained in this report may be directed to the Administration and Finance Department at 205 West Greet Street, Urbana, IL 61801.

# **BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

The basic financial Statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the GASB. The sets of statements include:

- Government-Wide Financial Statements
- Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to a user's understanding of the basic financial statements.

# **Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis June 30, 2023**

ASSETS	Governmental Activities
Current Assets Cash and Investments	\$ 2,908,158
Noncurrent Assets Capital Assets Depreciable Capital Assets Accumulated Depreciation Total Noncurrent Assets Total Assets	741,953 (223,881) 518,072 3,426,230
LIABILITIES	
Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Accrued Payroll Total Liabilities	7,348 4,259 11,607
NET POSITION	
Net Investment in Capital Assets Restricted	518,072
General Assistance Unrestricted	1,671,559 1,224,992
Total Net Position	3,414,623

# Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

			Program Revenu	ies	
	-	Charges	Operating	Capital	Net
		for	Grants/	Grants/	(Expenses)/
	Expenses	Services	Contributions	Contributions	Revenues
	•				
Governmental Activities					
General Government	\$ 699,699	_	_	_	(699,699)
Public Welfare	1,245,469	_	_	336,607	(908,862)
Total Governmental Activities	1,945,168	_		336,607	(1,608,561)
		_	Taxes rnmental - Unrest Property Replace at Income		1,851,510 93,308 46,870 41,217 2,032,905
		Change in 1	Net Position		424,344
		Net Position	n - Beginning	-	2,990,279
		Net Position	n - Ending	_	3,414,623

# **Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds - Modified Cash Basis June 30, 2023**

	General		
	 Town	Assistance	Total
ASSETS			
Cash and Investments	\$ 1,225,933	1,682,225	2,908,158
LIABILITIES			
Accounts Payable	_	7,348	7,348
Accrued Payroll	941	3,318	4,259
Total Liabilities	941	10,666	11,607
FUND BALANCES			
Restricted	_	1,671,559	1,671,559
Assigned	122,071		122,071
Unassigned	1,102,921		1,102,921
Total Fund Balances	1,224,992	1,671,559	2,896,551
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances	 1,225,933	1,682,225	2,908,158

Reconciliation of the Total Governmental Fund Balance to the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities - Modified Cash Basis
June 30, 2023

Total Governmental Fund Balances	\$ 2,896,551
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:	
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds.	518,072
Net Position of Governmental Activities	 3,414,623

# Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - Modified Cash Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

		General	
	Town	Assistance	Total
			-
Revenues			
Taxes	\$ 768,455	1,083,055	1,851,510
Intergovernmental	46,654	383,261	429,915
Investment Income	23,435	23,435	46,870
Miscellaneous	740	40,477	41,217
Total Revenues	839,284	1,530,228	2,369,512
Expenditures			
General Government	679,481	_	679,481
Public Welfare	_	1,185,437	1,185,437
Capital Outlay	10,683	84,749	95,432
Total Expenditures	690,164	1,270,186	1,960,350
Net Change in Fund Balances	149,120	260,042	409,162
Fund Balances - Beginning	 1,075,872	1,411,517	2,487,389
Fund Balances - Ending	1,224,992	1,671,559	2,896,551

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities - Modified Cash Basis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds	\$ 409,162
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:	
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. however, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.	
Capital Outlays	35,400
Depreciation Expense	 (20,218)
Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities	424,344

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Cunningham Township (the Township) operated under the Township organization article 60 ILCS. The Township provides the following services as authorized by statute: general assistance, property tax assessment, health and social services, and general administrative services. Since the Township is coterminous with the City of Urbana, duties that would normally be associated with a Township Road District or Higway Commissioner, are not applicable to the Township.

The basic financial statements of the Township have been presented on a modified cash basis of accounting. The modified cash basis of accounting differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Generally accepted accounting principles include all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The more significant of the Township's accounting policies are described below.

#### REPORTING ENTITY

In determining the financial reporting entity, the Township complies with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61 "The Financial Reporting Omnibus - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34," and includes all component units that have a significant operational or financial relationship with the Township. Based upon the criteria set forth in the GASB Statement No. 61, there are no component units included in the reporting entity.

#### **BASIS OF PRESENTATION**

#### **Government-Wide Statements**

The Township's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Township as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Township's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as governmental. The Township's highways and streets, and general administration are all classified as governmental activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column is (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reported on a modified cash, economic resource basis, which recognizes some long-term assets/deferred outflows and receivables as well as long-term debt/deferred inflows and obligations. The Township's net position is reported in three parts: net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. The Township first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the Township's functions (general government and highways and streets, etc.). The functions are supported by general government revenues (property and personal property replacement taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, which include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

#### **BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued**

#### **Government-Wide Statements - Continued**

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property and personal property replacement taxes, charges for services, investment income, etc.).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Township as an entity and the change in the Township's net position resulting from the current year's activities.

#### **Fund Financial Statements**

The financial transactions of the Township are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into one major category: governmental. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental category. A fund is considered major if it is a primary operating fund of the Township or meets the following criteria:

Total assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental funds.

The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. The following fund types are used by the Township:

#### **Governmental Funds**

All of the Township's funds are considered to be major funds. The funds reported by the Township are described below

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Township:

*General Fund* is the general operating fund of the Township. It accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

*Special revenue funds* are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Township maintains one special revenue fund. The General Assistance Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources related to general assistance.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

#### MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.

#### **Measurement Focus**

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, governmental funds are presented using the economic resources measurement focus, within the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting, as defined below. In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate.

All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. Only current financial assets/ deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

The accounting objectives of the "economic resources" measurement focus is the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported.

#### **Basis of Accounting**

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental activities are presented using the modified cash basis of accounting. This basis recognized revenue when cash is received and expenditures are recorded when payment is made. This basis is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are modified from the cash basis method because the Township records capital assets, depreciation, and long-term debt.

# ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

#### **Cash and Investments**

For purpose of the Statement of Net Position, the Township's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and cash with fiscal agent.

Investments are generally reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. For investments, the Township categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. All of the Township's investments are in 2a7-like investment pools that are measured at the net asset value per share determined by the pool.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

# ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY - Continued

#### **Capital Assets**

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of \$5,000 or more (depending on asset class) are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expenses as incurred.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the Township as a whole. When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets are historical cost, or where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement costs.

Depreciation on all assets is computed and recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation over the following estimated useful lives:

Software 5 Years Buildings 20 - 40 Years Vehicles 5 Years

#### **Long-Term Obligations**

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses at the time of issuance.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

# ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY - Continued

#### **Net Position**

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted - All other net position balances that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

# NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

#### **BUDGETARY INFORMATION**

The Township adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the financial statements:

- The Supervisor submits to the Township Board of Trustees a proposed operating budget, for the fiscal year commencing July 1st.
- A public hearing is conducted at an advertised location to obtain taxpayer comments.
- The budget must be adopted in ordinance form by the end of the first quarter of the fiscal year.

During the year, one supplementary appropriation was necessary.

#### EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET IN INDIVIDUAL FUND

The following fund had an excess of actual expenditures over budget for the fiscal year:

Fund	Excess	
General Assistance	\$	40,869

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### **NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS**

#### **DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS**

The Township maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "cash and investments." In addition, investments are separately held by several of the Township's funds.

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the Township to make deposits/invest in commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, and the Illinois Funds.

The Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the Illinois Public Treasurer's Office which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. The Illinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share price, the price for which the investment could be sold.

#### Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Concentration Risk, and Custodial Credit Risk

*Deposits*. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Township's deposits totaled \$1,754,225 and the bank balances totaled \$1,774,972. In addition, the Township has \$1,153,933 invested in the Illinois Funds at year-end, which has an average maturity of less than one year.

*Interest Rate Risk.* Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Township's does not have an investment policy that addresses interest rate risk.

*Credit Risk.* Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The Township does not have an investment policy that addresses credit risk. At year-end, the Township's investments in the Illinois Funds was rated AAA by Fitch.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Township's investment in a single issuer. The Township's does not have an investment policy that addresses concentration of credit risk. At year-end, the Township does not have any investments over 5 percent of cash and investments (other than investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments).

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township's deposits may not be returned to it. The Township's does not have an investment policy that addresses custodial credit risk for deposits At year-end, the entire amount of the bank balance of deposits was covered by collateral, federal depository or equivalent insurance.

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Township will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Township's does not have an investment policy that addresses custodial credit risk for investments. The Township's investment in the Illinois Funds is not subject to custodial credit risk.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

## **PROPERTY TAXES**

Property taxes for 2022 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, on property values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and are payable in two installments, on or about June 1 and September 1. The County collects such taxes and remits them in two fairly equal payments with a third lesser payment of any disputed taxes.

## **CAPITAL ASSETS**

#### **Governmental Activities**

Governmental capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

	Beginning				Ending
	E	Balances	Increases	Decreases	Balances
Depreciable Capital Assets					
Software	\$	50,350			50,350
Buildings		637,076	35,400		672,476
Vehicles		19,127	_	_	19,127
		706,553	35,400		741,953
Less Accumulated Depreciation					
Software		44,066	3,378		47,444
Buildings		140,470	16,840		157,310
Vehicles		19,127	_	_	19,127
		203,663	20,218		223,881
Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets		502,890	15,182		518,072
Total Net Capital Assets		502,890	15,182		518,072

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General Government \$ 20,218

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

#### NET POSITION CLASSIFICATIONS

Net investment in capital assets was comprised of the following as of June 30, 2023:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation

\$ 518,072

#### FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

In the governmental fund financial statements, the Township considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. The Township first utilizes committed, then assigned and then unassigned fund balance when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which all three unrestricted fund balances are available.

*Nonspendable Fund Balance.* Consists of resources that cannot be spent because they are either: a) not in a spendable form; or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance. Consists of resources that are restricted to specific purposes, that is, when constraints placed on the use of resources are either: a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance. Consists of resources constrained (issuance of an ordinance) to specific purposes by the government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority, the Board of Trustees; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned Fund Balance. Consists of amounts that are constrained by the Board of Trustees' intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by a) the Board of Trustees itself or b) a body or official to which the Board of Trustees has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. The Township's highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Trustees, who is authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose.

*Unassigned Fund Balance*. Consists of residual net resources of a fund that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned within the General Fund and deficit fund balances of other governmental funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

#### **FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS - Continued**

The following is a schedule of fund balance classifications for the governmental funds as of the date of this report:

		General	
	Town	Assistance	Totals
Fund Balances			
Restricted			
Road Expenditures	\$ _	1,671,559	1,671,559
Assigned			
Contingent Repayment of Property Tax	122,071	_	122,071
Unassigned	1,102,921		1,102,921
Total Fund Balances	 1,224,992	1,671,559	2,896,551

#### **NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION**

## **RISK MANAGEMENT**

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the Township's employees. The Township has purchased insurance from private insurance companies. Risks covered included certain types of liabilities and bonds. Premiums have been displayed as expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. There were no significant changes in insurance coverages from the prior year and settlements did not exceed insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

## **CONTINGENT LIABILITIES**

#### Litigation

The Township has no open legal cases that are probable of unasserted possible claims or assessments.

### Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Township expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### **NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued**

#### **CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - Continued**

## **Property Tax Commitments**

The Carle Foundation has paid real estate taxes to Champaign County under protest for the years 2004-2011. The Carle Foundation (Carle) maintained that certain properties should be exempt from real estate taxes due to its charitable status. On March 7, 2013, the Illinois Department of Revenue ruled that Carle Foundation will not be required to pay future real estate taxes to Champaign County beginning with the 2012 tax year. Since Carle's case prevailed, the Township is required to repay up to an estimated \$593,791 for its share of property taxes collected by the County of Champaign. The Township made no payments in fiscal years 2022 and 2023. For the remaining owed, the Township has assigned \$122,071 of the Town Fund balance and has earmarked \$93,071 of the General Assistance Fund balance.

#### **Tax Abatements**

The Township has not entered into an intergovernmental agreements for direct tax abatements. The Township tax base is, however affected by certain tax abatement agreements entered into by other taxing bodies.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, various tax abatement agreements were entered into for a five-year period beginning 2020 at various percentages ranging from 20-100%. The amount of the Township's property tax abated in fiscal year 2023 under these agreements totaled \$96,447.

#### EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

## Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

The Township contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That report may be obtained online at <a href="https://www.imrf.org">www.imrf.org</a>. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.

#### **Plan Descriptions**

*Plan Administration*. All hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members. The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized when earned in the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Benefits Provided. IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date).

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### **NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued**

#### EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

## Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

## **Plan Descriptions - Continued**

Benefits Provided - Continued. All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired **before** January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement.

Employees hired *on or after* January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the *lesser* of:

- 3% of the original pension amount, or
- 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount.

*Plan Membership.* As of December 31, 2022, the measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive Plan Members Currently Receiving Benefits	9
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits	13
Active Plan Members	15
Total	37

Contributions. As set by statute, the Township's Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. For the year-ended June 30, 2023, the Township's contribution was 1.95% of covered payroll.

*Net Pension (Asset)*. The Township's net pension (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2022. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, as of December 31, 2022, using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### **NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued**

#### EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

## Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

## **Plan Descriptions - Continued**

Actuarial Assumptions - Continued.

Actuarial Cost Method	Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method	Fair Value
Actuarial Assumptions Interest Rate	7.25%
Salary Increases	2.85% to 13.75%
Cost of Living Adjustments	3.25%
Inflation	2.25%

For nondisabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Retiree, Male (adjusted 106%) and Female (adjusted 105%) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. For active members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Employee, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### **NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued**

## EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

## Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

## **Plan Descriptions - Continued**

Actuarial Assumptions - Continued.

		Long-Term
		Expected Real
Asset Class	Target	Rate of Return
Fixed Income	25.50%	4.90%
Domestic Equities	35.50%	6.50%
International Equities	18.00%	7.60%
Real Estate	10.50%	6.20%
Blended	9.50%	6.25% - 9.90%
Cash and Cash Equivalents	1.00%	4.00%

## **Discount Rate**

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%, the same as the prior valuation. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Township contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

## **Discount Rate Sensitivity**

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the Township calculated using the discount rate as well as what the Township's net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

	Current				
	Ι	Decrease	Discount Rate	1% Increase	
		(6.25%)	(7.25%)	(8.25%)	
				_	
Net Pension Liability/(Asset)	\$	205,572	(10,521)	(186,224)	

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

**NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued** 

## EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

## Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

**Changes in the Net Pension (Asset)** 

	Total Pension Liability (A)	Plan Fiduciary Net Position (B)	Net Pension (Asset) (A) - (B)
Balances at December 31, 2021	\$ 2,578,001	3,253,204	(675,203)
Changes for the Year:			
Service Cost	37,506	_	37,506
Interest on the Total Pension Liability	181,357	_	181,357
Changes of Benefit Terms	_	_	
Difference Between Expected and Actual			
Experience of the Total Pension Liability	48,390	_	48,390
Changes of Assumptions		_	_
Contributions - Employer		16,600	(16,600)
Contributions - Employees		23,895	(23,895)
Net Investment Income		(453,810)	453,810
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds			
of Employee Contributions	(190,558)	(190,558)	
Other (Net Transfer)	 	15,886	(15,886)
Net Changes	 76,695	(587,987)	664,682
Balances at December 31, 2022	2,654,696	2,665,217	(10,521)

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Township recognized pension expense of \$11,628 on the modified cash basis. At June 30, 2023 on the accrual basis of accounting, the Township's deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Notes to the Financial Statements June 30, 2023

#### **NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued**

#### EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

## Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - Continued

	Deferred		Deferred		
	Ou	tflows of	Inflows of		
	R	esources	Resources	Totals	
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience	\$	47,949	_	47,949	
Change in Assumptions		_	(2,209)	(2,209)	
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual					
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments		218,837	_	218,837	
Total Pension Expense to be					
Recognized in Future Periods		266,786	(2,209)	264,577	
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent					
to the Measurement Date		2,654		2,654	
Total Deferred Amounts Related to IMPE		260 440	(2.200)	267.221	
Total Deferred Amounts Related to IMRF		269,440	(2,209)	267,231	

On the accrual basis of accounting, the Township would report \$2,654 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date and would be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the reporting year ended June 30, 2024. In addition, on the accrual basis of accounting, the Township would report deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions would be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

	Net	Net Deferred				
Fiscal	O	Outflows/				
1 15001	(I	nflows)				
Year	of I	Resources				
2024	\$	(4,293)				
2025		51,378				
2026		80,533				
2027		136,959				
2028		_				
Thereafter		_				
	<del>-</del>					
Total		264,577				

## OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

## Such schedules include:

- Schedule Employer Contributions
  Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
- Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
- Budgetary Comparison Schedules Town Fund General Assistance Fund

## INDIVIDUAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS

## **TOWN FUND**

The Town Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

## **SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS**

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than fiduciary funds or capital projects funds) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

## **General Assistance Fund**

The General Assistance Fund is used to account for the proceeds for specific revenue sources related to general assistance.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Schedule of Employer Contributions June 30, 2023

Fiscal Year	Actuarially Determined Contribution	Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution	Contribution Excess/ (Deficiency)	Covered Payroll	Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll
2015	\$ 45,716	\$ 46,687	\$ 971	\$ 32,626	143.10%
2016	56,144	56,144	_	352,445	15.93%
2017	57,384	57,384	_	357,977	16.03%
2018	45,056	45,056	_	348,733	12.92%
2019	41,790	71,790	30,000	315,636	22.74%
2020	29,691	99,690	69,999	323,785	30.79%
2021	30,013	30,013		372,837	8.05%
2022	20,681	20,681		466,911	4.43%
2023	11,628	11,628	_	595,874	1.95%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level % Pay (Closed)

Remaining Amortization Period 21 Years

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Fair Value

Inflation 2.25%

Salary Increases 2.85% to 13.75%, Including Inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.25%

Retirement Age See the Notes to the Financial Statements

For non-disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Retiree, Male (adjusted 106%) and Female (adjusted 105%) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. For active members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Employee, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements

projected using scale MP-2020.

## Note:

Mortality

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed as it becomes available.

# Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability June 30, 2023

		12/31/2014	12/31/2015
Total Dangian Liability			
Total Pension Liability Service Cost	\$	39,554	35,245
Interest	Φ	169,344	178,398
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience		105,511	170,570
and Actual Experience		(28,564)	3,882
Change of Assumptions		100,947	
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds		100,5 . /	
of Member Contributions		(154,514)	(155,285)
		( - ,- )	( , )
Net Change in Total Pension Liability		126,767	62,240
Total Pension Liability - Beginning		2,321,443	2,448,210
			_
Total Pension Liability - Ending		2,448,210	2,510,450
DI D'II ' NAD ''			
Plan Fiduciary Net Position	Ф	46.607	56144
Contributions - Employer	\$	46,687	56,144
Contributions - Members		14,827	15,860
Net Investment Income		118,688	9,924
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions		(154 514)	(155 205)
		(154,514)	(155,285)
Other (Net Transfer)		8,567	141,363
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position		34,255	68,006
Plan Net Position - Beginning		1,992,213	2,026,468
Timi Tite Tooliion Degiming		1,772,213	2,020,100
Plan Net Position - Ending		2,026,468	2,094,474
Employaria Not Dangian Lighility/(Agast)	¢	421 742	115 076
Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)	Ф	421,742	415,976
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage			
of the Total Pension Liability		82.77%	83.43%
Covered Payroll	\$	322,626	352,445
Covered Layron	Ψ	322,020	332,773
Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of			
Covered Payroll		130.72%	118.03%

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed as it becomes available.

*Changes of Assumptions.* Changes in assumptions related to the discount rate were made in 2015 through 2021. Changes in assumptions related to the demographics were made in 2015 and 2017.

12/31/2016	12/31/2017	12/31/2018	12/31/2019	12/31/2020	12/31/2021	12/31/2022
36,673 182,925	37,646 188,193	33,023 178,872	27,582 169,082	30,976 174,303	33,900 177,786	37,506 181,357
17,133 (9,185)	(87,710) (77,140)	(132,054) 50,458	45,001 —	42,075 (24,124)	21,347	48,390
(159,996)	(175,153)	(190,771)	(169,983)	(172,701)	(180,607)	(190,558)
67,550 2,510,450	(114,164) 2,578,000	(60,472) 2,463,836	71,682 2,403,364	50,529 2,475,046	52,426 2,525,575	76,695 2,578,001
2,578,000	2,463,836	2,403,364	2,475,046	2,525,575	2,578,001	2,654,696
57,382 16,109 144,659	45,055 15,693 415,641	71,790 14,203 (169,756)	99,690 14,570 450,583	30,014 16,778 393,952	26,446 21,203 513,547	16,600 23,895 (453,810)
(159,996) 14,009	(175,153) (58,066)	(190,771) 55,158	(169,983) 4,166	(172,701) 11,764	(180,607) 3,351	(190,558) 15,886
72,163 2,094,474	243,170 2,166,637	(219,376) 2,409,807	399,026 2,190,431	279,807 2,589,457	383,940 2,869,264	(587,987) 3,253,204
2,166,637	2,409,807	2,190,431	2,589,457	2,869,264	3,253,204	2,665,217
411,363	54,029	212,933	(114,411)	(343,689)	(675,203)	(10,521)
84.04%	97.81%	91.14%	104.62%	113.61%	126.19%	100.40%
357,977	348,733	315,636	323,785	372,837	466,512	525,343
114.91%	15.49%	67.46%	(35.34%)	(92.18%)	(144.73%)	(2.00%)

Town Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023	For the	<b>Fiscal</b>	Year	<b>Ended</b>	June	30,	2023
---	---------	---------------	------	--------------	------	-----	------

	Budgeted Amounts			Actual	
	Original		Final	Amounts	
Revenues					
Taxes					
Property Taxes	\$	782,325	812,441	768,455	
Intergovernmental					
Replacement Taxes		24,000	46,654	46,654	
Investment Income		600	23,435	23,435	
Miscellaneous		1,500	740	740	
Total Revenues		808,425	883,270	839,284	
Expenditures					
General Government					
Disbursements Supervisor's Office		358,607	264,196	263,554	
Assessor's Office		495,887	415,625	415,927	
Capital Outlay		7,000	10,683	10,683	
Total Expenditures		861,494	690,504	690,164	
Net Change in Fund Balance		(53,069)	192,766	149,120	
Fund Balance - Beginning				1,075,872	
Fund Balance - Ending				1,224,992	

Town Fund Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

	Budgeted Amounts		Actual	
	Original	Final	Amounts	
Expenditures				
General Government				
Disbursements Supervisor's Office				
Salaries	\$ 130,426	127,231	127,231	
Employee Benefits	45,031	42,566	42,566	
Office Supplies	6,650	4,327	4,327	
Administrative Services	41,000	5,113	5,113	
Janitorial Services	3,000	2,550	2,550	
Computer Services	6,000	3,043	3,043	
Audit Services	9,000	9,260	9,260	
Legal Services	10,000	8,100	8,100	
Dues and Subscriptions	2,000	1,711	1,711	
Vehicle Maintenance	_	105	105	
Repairs and Maintenance	13,000	2,924	2,924	
Events	72,000	52,039	52,039	
Miscellaneous	2,500	1,235	593	
Insurance	7,500	(1,629)	(1,629)	
Telephone and Internet	3,500	2,527	2,527	
Utilities	4,000	3,094	3,094	
Carle/Presence Property Tax Refund	3,000			
Total Disbursements Supervisor's Office	358,607	264,196	263,554	
Assessor's Office				
Salaries	249,966	249,751	249,751	
Employee Benefits	84,421	34,683	34,985	
Office Supplies	9,000	2,928	2,928	
Administrative Services	23,000	8,697	8,697	
Janitorial Services	5,400	4,200	4,200	
Computer Services	24,300	23,679	23,679	
Appraisals	34,000	32,195	32,195	
Legal Services	20,000	21,345	21,345	
Dues and Subscriptions	6,000	2,484	2,484	
Travel and Training	21,250	19,207	19,207	

Town Fund Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis - Continued For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

	I	Budgeted Amounts		
	Orig	Original		Amounts
Expenditures -Continued				
General Government - Continued				
Assessor's Office - Continued				
Property Acquisition/Rent	\$	10,800	12,000	12,000
Miscellaneous		4,000	(6)	(6)
Telephone and Internet		3,150	2,458	2,458
Utilities		600	2,004	2,004
Total Assessor's Office	4	95,887	415,625	415,927
Total General Government	8	354,494	679,821	679,481
Capital Outlay		7,000	10,683	10,683
Total Expenditures	8	861,494	690,504	690,164

General Assistance - Special Revenue Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

	Budgeted Amounts			Actual	
			Final	Amounts	
		<u> </u>			
Revenues					
Taxes					
Property Taxes	\$	1,100,124	1,039,069	1,083,055	
Intergovernmental					
Replacement Taxes		24,000	46,654	46,654	
Donations		78,000	45,048	45,048	
Grants and Reimbursements		179,300	291,559	291,559	
Investment Income		20	23,435	23,435	
Miscellaneous		25,000	10,940	40,477	
Total Revenues		1,406,444	1,456,705	1,530,228	
Expenditures					
Public Welfare		1,306,920	1,174,568	1,185,437	
Capital Outlay		55,000	54,749	84,749	
Total Expenditures		1,361,920	1,229,317	1,270,186	
Net Change in Fund Balance		44,524	227,388	260,042	
Fund Balance - Beginning				1,411,517	
Fund Balance - Ending				1,671,559	

General Assistance - Special Revenue Fund Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Modified Cash Basis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

	Budgeted Amounts		Actual	
	Original	Final	Amounts	
Expenditures				
Public Welfare				
Salaries	\$ 365,6	351,633	351,633	
Employee Benefits	122,1		105,091	
Office Supplies	15,0	· ·	18,536	
Computer Software	12,0		7,750	
Work/Training Supplies	1-,0	— 885	885	
Administrative Services	4 (	3,246	3,246	
Janitorial Services	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	3,028	3,028	
Dues and Subscriptions	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	000 240	240	
Travel and Training	23,5		6,949	
Personal Allowances	346,2		236,350	
Build Urbana Program		15,049	15,049	
Rent	20,0		_	
Rental Assistance	120,0		137,188	
Rapid Rehousing	46,0		55,396	
Intern/Volunteers Program	40,0		55,118	
Emergency Assistance	69,8	*	121,174	
Angel Donors	50,0		3,590	
Solidarity Gardens		7,136	7,136	
Events		5,931	5,931	
Miscellaneous		2,313	2,313	
Insurance		3,698	11,093	
Telephone and Internet	7,7	700 3,185	3,185	
Utilities	24,0	25,106	25,106	
Legal Services	10,0	9,450	9,450	
Carle/Presence Property Tax Refund	3,0		_	
Total Public Welfare	1,306,9	1,174,568	1,185,437	
Capital Outlay	55,0	54,749	84,749	
Total Expenditures	1,361,9	1,229,317	1,270,186	

# SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE



**See Following Page** 

# Schedule of Assessed Valuations, Tax Rates, Extensions and Collections - Last Eight Fiscal Years June 30, 2023

	2015	2016	2017
Assessed Valuation	\$ 523,103,317	545,974,455	557,884,512
Tax Rates			
Town	0.1497	0.1435	0.1404
Mental Health	0.0657	0.0629	0.0616
Revenue Recapture		_	<u> </u>
Total Tax Rates	0.2154	0.2064	0.2020
Tax Extensions			
Town	\$ 783,086	783,473	783,270
Mental Health	343,679	343,418	343,657
Revenue Recapture			
Total Tax Extensions	1,126,765	1,126,891	1,126,927

2018	2019	2020	2021	2022
583,475,063	596,954,779	605,365,820	624,361,213	693,472,254
0.1354	0.1386	0.1386	0.1253	0.1221
0.0676	0.0670	0.1629	0.1762	0.1794
_	_	_	0.0028	0.0022
0.2030	0.2056	0.3015	0.3043	0.3037
790,025	827,379	839,037	842,640	914,598
394,429	399,960	986,141	1,184,942	1,343,808
_	_	_	18,830	16,479
			·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1,184,454	1,227,339	1,825,178	2,046,412	2,274,885